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  [10.03 am] 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you.  Right, well, we will start by recording appearances.  

Ms Scott, you and Ms McCallum (ph 0.19) are for Council? 

 5 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, good morning, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Carranceja, you and Ms Silcock for the Crown? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, thank you. 10 

 

SJH:   Ms Marks, you are for the Carter Group? 

 

MS MARKS:   Yes, sir. 

 15 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Leckie, you are for Ngāi Tahu and Pegasus Health? 

 

MR LECKIE:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Wyss, you are the Regional Council? 20 

 

MS WYSS:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Appleyard, you are for a whole group of people? 

 25 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, would you like me to read them out.   

 

SJH:   Just for the record, yes. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:  Christchurch International Airport Limited, Orion, the 30 

Catholic Diocese, Alpine Presbytery, Pacific Park Limited and Church 

Property Trustees. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, and Ms Hall, is it, you are from Ballantynes, Southern 

Response? 35 

 

MS HALL:   And New Zealand Science and Technology Charitable Trust and 

Ngāi Tahu Justice Holding Limited. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  If we would just record submitters that are present, if there 40 

are any planners specifically representing parties who don’t have 

counsel they could put that on the record, if they are simply here in 

support of counsel then we won’t need that. 

 

  [10.05 am] 45 
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MS McLEOD:   Ainsley McLeod for Transpower. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR MILLER:   Darryl Miller for Christchurch Polytechnic. 5 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MR TAYLOR:   Graham Taylor for Christchurch Arts Centre. 

 10 

MS FOOTE:   Melanie Foote ISite and Go Media. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR CLEASE:   Jonathan Clease for Christ College and Ravenscar House. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS EVANS:   Ruth Evans for Christchurch Casinos Limited. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  Now submitters who are present. 

 

MS MARTIN:   Anne Martin, Hands Off Hagley. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 25 

 

MR DYHRBERG:  Peter Dyhrberg for myself and others, six altogether, 

submitters. 

 

SJH:   So you are appearing personally not as counsel? 30 

 

MR DYHRBERG:  Correct, sir.   

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 35 

MR ROACH:   Stephen Roach, Cancer Society. 

 

MS MANTHEI:   Marjorie Manthei for a group on Gracefield Avenue and for 

the Victoria Neighbourhood Association. 

 40 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS MURRAY:   Jane Murray for the Canterbury District Health Board. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 45 
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MR MANTHEI:   Bob Manthei, I am appearing on behalf of myself. 

 

SJH:   I am sorry I didn’t catch that. 

 

MR MANTHEI:   Myself, representing myself. 5 

 

SJH:   Your name is? 

 

MR MANTHEI:   Robert Manthei. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS LUCAS:   Di Lucas for Peterborough Village. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, all right, thank you.  Could I just note conflicts of interest 15 

have been posted online but I have already made it clear that anything 

to do with Hagley Park I will play no part in at all because of my role 

as a trustee of the Canterbury Cricket Trust?  Now there has been 

communications with Mr Meehan and I understand that it is acceptable 

to him and your group, could you just confirm that for the record 20 

please? 

 

MS MARTIN:   Yes, that is acceptable. 

 

SJH:   Thank you very much.  Now, Ms Scott, we have some issues all the way 25 

through this because bits are carved up, some are asked to be heard 

with, some are asked to be transferred to et cetera.  I think so that we 

get it perfectly clear, I will come back to it, but we may invite you to 

file a draft order on that part of the various chapters so that we get it 

absolutely right if there is no opposition to that course.  All right, so 30 

you filed your issues document so you had better start for us please. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.  I just have in the memorandum I have three 

corrections or matters of clarification to bring to your attention.  The 

first is on page 3 at paragraph 4.2 and there reference objective 3.3.8 35 

which is the notified strategic directions objective for the central city.  

There is an additional submission point by the Crown on strategic 

direction objective 3.3.5, which is the business objective and the 

Council has liaised with counsel for the Crown and agree that that 

submission point should be heard along with the central city. 40 

 

 The second correction is in paragraph 9 regarding the submission by 

Papanui Road Limited in the third line, the word “within” should be 

replaced with “outside”.  So it reads “…and outside what is defined in 

the proposed replacement district plan as the central city”.    45 
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  [10.10 am] 

 

 And then the third is in paragraph 11.  In the second line it refers to the 

Stage 3 Central City hearing.  That should refer to the Stage 3 General 

Rules. 5 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MS SCOTT:  I also have some matters of clarity in the Statement of Issues.  

Would you like me to take them through now? 10 

 

SJH:   Just before we go to that, what you’re suggesting here at paragraph 6 are 

matters that should be heard alongside the parent topic but not 

transferred into that chapter - - - 

 15 

MS SCOTT:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   - - - because this falls into the first category I mentioned. 

 

MS SCOTT:  “Transferred and heard with”, so both the Crown and the Council 20 

have made a submission on the Central City chapter seeking that the 

provisions that have been notified in Chapter 13 be transferred and 

renumbered and sit within the topic specific chapter, for example, the 

Central City Commercial Zone was notified in Chapter 13 but it should 

more appropriately end up in Chapter 15 of the Replacement District 25 

Plan. 

 

 Where there is a Stage 3 hearing still to be heard on a topic, it is the 

Council’s view that it would be most efficient for the hearing for the 

central city provisions to also be heard in that topic, and there are three 30 

that that falls into.  It is the Open Space Hearing, the General Rules, 

and Natural Hazards. 

 

 That approach would reduce the amount of evidence that needed to be 

called, for example, all the evidence on Open Space to be called at 35 

once. 

 

SJH:   I understand the efficiency.  I also understand this would have been self-

evident for probably 12 months, wouldn’t it? 

 40 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Are you in a position to file a draft order in relation to Central City as to 

where various bits should be heard? 

 45 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and - - - 
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SJH:   Because, I mean, from our point of view it is probably important that 

they are heard by the same Panels as well.  

 

MS SCOTT:   For the Central - - - 5 

 

SJH:   Well, all of these things. We’re having bits chopped out and put 

somewhere else and we have different Panels, it is much, much harder 

to integrate them.  I mean, I thought that would have been self-evident? 

 10 

MS SCOTT:   It is, sir. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS SCOTT:   So you would like the memorandum - - - 15 

 

SJH:   You are asking for certain orders all through these pre-hearings, 

transferring in part to other chapters, other ones you are asking that it 

be heard with another chapter, what you described as a “parent” 

chapter.  What we want is a draft order specifically setting those out. 20 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, we can do that.  

 

SJH:   So just to take it out of all of this other stuff that is in here, so it is 

perfectly clear, because the danger is if we have to work through all 25 

this, staff work through all this, something could fall through the 

cracks. And it’s your responsibility to do that, and I would have 

thought 24 hours was sufficient time to file such a draft order so we can 

get the reports of the pre-hearings out. 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Now, you were going to take us to the Statement of Issues? 

 

MS SCOTT:  Thank you, sir.  On page 10, issue 1G, the second one there 35 

should be sub-issue 2, and that should be reworded to be “should the 

matters for assessment of any noncompliance be limited to external 

effects rather than internal layouts”. 

 

SJH:   So cross out “are the” and insert “should”? 40 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and then cross out “being” at the end of the first line 

and replace with “be”. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 45 
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MS SCOTT:   In issue 1S4 on page 15 - - - 

 

SJH:   Yes? 

 

MS SCOTT: - - - in that first line replace the word “business” with 5 

“residential”, and in the second line replace the word “residential” with 

“business”. 

 

SJH:   They are just transposed? 

 10 

MS SCOTT: Yes, so the rezoning sort is from Central City Residential to 

Central City Business.  

 

SJH:   All right. 

 15 

MS SCOTT:  And finally, on page 30, in response to some discussions with 

Transpower, issues 6B and 6D can be deleted. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 20 

MS SCOTT:   And that is all, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Now with those changes, is the Crown content 

with the Statement of Issues, Mr Carranceja? 

 25 

  [10.15 am] 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Yes, sir, I do have a few comments, first of all regarding 

the Statement of Issues, sir.  There are a couple of issues the Crown 

would like to see added, and that is in relation to that part of the - - - 30 

 

SJH:   Have you discussed them with the Council? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No, we recently just received instructions, sir, but I can 

just specify them. 35 

 

SJH:   All right, okay. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, the issue just relates to the specific purpose Central 

City Hospital Zone component of the Central City Proposal, sir.  The 40 

couple of issues that the Crown wishes to add is, firstly, whether the 

wording for the policy relating to comprehensive developments is 

appropriate, and the second issue, sir, is whether the rules relating to 

parking, where parking buildings are visible from the road, are 

appropriate.  Those are the only two additional issues, sir. 45 
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SJH:   Okay. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  I am not sure if this is the appropriate time to just 

mention, again regarding the same sort of issues, that the Crown sees 

that there are quite a few definitions that are relevant to be heard as part 5 

of the Central City Proposal.   

 

 I mean, part of this submission, sir, is that all definitions referred in the 

Central City Proposal should be within the scope of the hearing, but 

there are some specifics that the Crown wishes to definitely have in 10 

there. Whether you would like me to read them off now, sir, or whether 

- - - 

 

SJH:   Well, look, along with this draft order, can we ask the Council and 

Crown and anyone else that is concerned around definitions to work 15 

together and to supply us with a final list?  And I understand the way 

these unfold you are not in a position today necessarily, but a final list 

of the definitions that should be heard as part of the Central City 

hearing? 

 20 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Sir, I am happy to undertake a dialogue with the 

Council, sir. 

 

SJH:   Yes, but you had better outline to us the ones that you see as critical 

from your point of view. 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Yes, sir.  The definitions we would like to see heard as 

part of the proposal, sir – “ancillary equipment”, that will be a new 

definition that the Crown wishes to have in there; “customary 

harvesting”; “domestic”; “guest accommodation”; “hazardous facility”; 30 

“indigenous vegetation”; “indigenous vegetation clearances”; “mast”; 

“residential activity”; “sensitive activities”; “sensitive areas”; 

“temporary activities and buildings”; and finally, sir, “urban activities”. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 35 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Thank you, sir.  I am not sure if you wish me to 

comment also on the memorandum aspects of what was filed and just 

commented on the Statement of Issues that - - - 

 40 

SJH:   Just the Statement of Issues at this stage, thank you - - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   - - - but we will work through and come back to the other matters. 45 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Do other counsel have comments on the Statement of Issues, as to what 

should be included?  You have heard what the Crown wants to amend. 

 5 

MS WYSS:   Sir, on behalf of the Regional Council, in relation to issue 4A on 

page 27 - - - 

 

SJH:   Sorry, page? 

 10 

MS WYSS:   Page 27, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS WYSS:  That issue sets out that the notified provisions considered to be 15 

consistent with an accessible city.  ECan’s submission seeks a number 

of changes at an objective and policy level on the basis that the 

provisions as notified are not considered consistent with an accessible 

city. 

 20 

SJH:   Yes, I understand that, but are you seeking changes to the Statement of 

Issues? 

 

MS WYSS:   Yes, sir.   

 25 

SJH:   And have you got something that you have drafted to show us? 

 

MS WYSS:  Just probably reworded – similar to issue 1B, as to whether the 

provisions as notified are appropriate and consistent with the central 

city recovery plan, sir. 30 

 

SJH:   So where does that fit in 4A? 

 

MS WYSS:   Either changing the wording within 4A or possibly a new issue. 

 35 

SJH:   All right.  Well, again you can work with the Council and the Crown to 

include that in the draft order that I have directed. 

 

MS WYSS:   Yes, sir. 

 40 

SJH:   Thank you.  Any other counsel have anything?  Any of the planners that 

are appearing have anything?  Any submitters?  All right, thank you. 

 

 Now, mediation, Ms Scott, the secretariat has indicated that is at 7 and 

8 December for that? 45 
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MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.  

 

SJH:   All right, are they are any counsel, planners or submitters that have 

anything to say on mediation?   

 5 

 All right, we will direct that mediation is to take place on 7 and 8 

December. There will be necessary liaison with the secretariat to 

establish specific timetables.  Experts can attend these, but attendees, if 

they are representing an organisation need to have authority to bind that 

organisation at the mediation.   10 

 

 Can we also say, as we have said in other chapters, that if you have an 

issue in your submission that you think you can work through and 

reach agreement with other submitters or the Council, you should 

arrange informal mediation?  We encourage. 15 

 

  [10.20 am] 

 

 Expert conferencing, the dates suggested Ms Scott, are 26 and 27 

November.  The discussion topics? 20 

 

MS SCOTT:  Sir, we haven’t proposed any in the memorandum, we were 

hoping to here from the parties as to who they would be calling, and 

then we could work with the Secretariat to confirm those topics.   

 25 

SJH:   All right.  Well perhaps we will just park that for the moment and come 

back after we have been through the witnesses.   

 

 Red Line version, suggested date of 11 November. 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and that would include the redrafting into the parent 

chapters.   

 

SJH:   And that is still acceptable though, if I’d be so direct? 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.   

 

SJH:   Your evidence is due 16 December? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.   40 

 

SJH:   Submitters’ evidence 14 January. Now, I should have said at the 

beginning that at the back table is Mr Ball, a friend of submitters.  If 

any unrepresented submitters have confusions about the difference 

between a submission and evidence they should discuss that with 45 

Mr Ball before they leave the hearing today. But a submission is a 
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statement you wish to make about your particular circumstances or the 

organisation’s circumstances. 

 

 Evidence is either sworn or affirmed and that means there maybe 

applications to cross-examine on that.  So perhaps we could go through 5 

now with the evidence, given we have reached that stage.  

 

 Your witnesses are listed where Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   At paragraph 16, sir, and if I could just update that list, please. 10 

 

SJH:   Yes.    

 

MS SCOTT: Under commercial mixed use zones, I have five additional 

witnesses, the first is - - - 15 

 

SJH:   Five additional? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.  That is if it is necessary, depending on how mediations 

progress. 20 

 

SJH:   All right. 

 

MS SCOTT:   The first is an urban designer, the second a storm water 

engineer, the third a wastewater engineer, a transport engineer and 25 

finally a heritage expert. On page 7 those listed under General Rules, 

they would not be called in the Central City Hearing, they would be 

called in the General Rules Hearing.  

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Now, Mr Carranceja, can you indicate the experts 30 

for the Crown? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   I certainly can, sir.  But what I just wish to emphasise 

first of all is that the Crown intends to call a total of 21 witnesses on the 

assumption that worse-case scenario there is no settlement of 35 

mediation, sir. 

 

 Having said that, the 21 witnesses I am about to specify to you is again 

on the assumption that the matters that the Council are seeking to have 

heard in other hearings occurs, otherwise our number of witnesses 40 

would increase to 35, sir. 

 

 So perhaps, sir, if I can just specify the Council has asked that the Open 

Space components, the General Rules components and the Natural 

Hazards components of this proposal be heard with the Parent 45 

Proposal, should that occur, and witnesses dropped from 35 to 21.   
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 So to specify the witnesses on the assumption that - - - 

 

SJH:   Well just assume that that’s been so directed. 

 5 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Okay, sir. First of all we would have a planner covering 

three main aspects, a strategic overlook over the Central City 

Commercial aspects and Residential aspects.  We will have a Strategic 

Transport Planner, we would have a Commercial Property expert 

providing a Central City update, most likely Marius Ogg, sir.   10 

 

 Residential Intensification, most likely John Schellekens, Residential 

Markets and a Central City Recovery expert providing an update on 

that matter, sir.   

 15 

 We will have a planner talking about the Mixed Use Zone in the South 

Frame, urban designer, a planner for the New Zealand Fire Service.  A 

planner relating to specific transport matters and a traffic expert.   

 

 For the Specific Purpose Zone, sir, we will have a planner for the 20 

Ministry of Education. We will have a planner for the Ministry of 

Health.  We will also have a hospital and health design expert and 

operational hospital evidence.  We will have for the cemetery aspects, 

sir, a planner and a heritage architect.   

 25 

  [10.25 am] 

 

 For the Utilities and Energy and also the Hazardous Substances 

component a planner; a planner relating to earthworks and a planner 

relating to subdivision; and finally, sir, an infrastructural expert.   30 

 

SJH:   A number of those have been canvassed at very great length in evidence 

at various other Chapters - Health, Education, Fire Services et cetera. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   Have you talked with the Council about that yet, or not, in terms of 

trying to reach agreement? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Not specifically in the Central City, we have had some 40 

dialogue, sir, but if things go well at mediation or even at informal 

mediation, sir, this witness list could drop. 

 

SJH:   Well I think that is something that needs to start immediately. 

 45 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Absolutely, sir. 
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SJH:   Given that it’s a pretty well canvassed area this. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   And I imagine the various experts will be similar to the ones that have 

already been called in those areas, both for the Council and the Crown. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 10 

SJH:   It should be capable of resolution, a lot of it I would have thought.  Not 

everything necessarily, but an awful lot of it.   

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, the Crown is certainly hopeful that that will occur. 

 15 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir.  

 

SJH:   Ms Marks. 20 

 

MS MARKS:  Yes, sir.  We intend to call a planner, a company representative, 

an urban design expert and a transport expert.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Leckie? 25 

 

MR LECKIE:   Thank you, sir.  Ngai Tahu will call a planner and a cultural 

witness, and Pegasus Health will just call a planner.   

 

SJH:   Ms Wyss? 30 

 

MS WYSS:   Sir, the Council anticipates calling a transport planner.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Appleyard? 

 35 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, the Airport has a submission in respect to aircraft 

protection, navigational aids, that will involve a company 

representative and a planner. Orion has submissions in relation to 

utilities, that will involve a company representative and a planner.   

 40 

 Pacific Park has a submission in respect to entertainment precincts, 

which is a different topic, and they will be calling an economist, a 

planner, a noise expert and probably someone dealing with social-

alcohol related issues and a representative of the company. 

 45 
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 In respect of the churches, you might have picked up, there is one 

general submission in relation to the Catholic Diocese, the Church 

Property Trustees and Alpine Presbytery, and then there are three site 

specific ones which are split between the Cathedral of the Blessed 

Sacrament, the Christchurch Cathedral and Alpine Presbytery.  But we 5 

are in discussions about trying to present a joint case. 

 

 So that joint case, so there will joint evidence at a general level and 

also site specific evidence.  But generally the case for those three will 

involve company representatives, a planner, engineer, economist, 10 

heritage and QS, and there may be some design issues in there as well.   

 

 I think that is all in this Chapter.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Hall? 15 

 

MS HALL:  J Ballantyne and Company Limited will call a transport engineer.  

The New Zealand Science and Technology Charitable Trust and Ngai 

Tahu Justice Holdings Limited a planner and an ecologist. And the 

New Zealand Institute of Management Southern Incorporated, a 20 

planner as well.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:   So thought has been given amongst all Council to sharing planners, but 

also when you are representing multi parties, simply calling one 

planner to cover all of them? 25 

 

MS…………:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  The planners. 

 30 

MS MCLEOD:   Sir, Transpower will call a planning witness only if required 

and confined to how the utility session integrates with Chapter 13. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 35 

MR……….:  Sir, the Christchurch Polytechnic will call a planner and a 

Polytechnic representative. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 40 

MR…………:   The Arts Centre will call a planner if necessary, although their 

only submission relates to a specific issue relating to Art Studios, 

which we hope we would be able to deal with in mediation.   

 

SJH:   Thank you. 45 
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MS………..:   Sir, iSite and Go Media will have a joint submission and we will 

call a planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 5 

MR………:   Sir, Christ College will call a planner, a college representative 

and a heritage architect, and (INDISTINCT 4.47) House will call a 

planner, an urban designer and a trust representative.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  10 

 

MS………..:   Sir, Christchurch Casino Limited will call a planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 15 

  [10.30 am] 

 

MS ……….:   The CDHB will call a planner, a Medical Officer of Health and 

an operational expert but we are willing to share that expert with the 

Ministry of Health. 20 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Are you going to be represented this time seeing you are 

calling expert witnesses by legal counsel?  Because it is not for us to do 

your cross examination and suchlike for you.   

 25 

MS ……….:  Sorry I don’t understand the question. 

 

SJH:   Can I suggest you get a lawyer to appear for you in the hearing? 

 

MS ……….:  Okay, thank you. 30 

 

SJH:   Submitters – start in the front row over here please.  If you just indicate 

if you’re giving evidence yourself or a submission and if you’d be 

calling any expert evidence. 

 35 

MR ……….:  May it please the Panel, I should perhaps have clarified before 

that although I am appearing as a submitter, our submitters have 

engaged counsel so we intend to have counsel at the hearing, at this 

stage taking - - - 

 40 

SJH:   I am not suggesting everybody needs counsel but an organisation the 

size of the DHB when they are calling expert witnesses clearly does. 

 

MR ……….: Well I just wanted to flag the position we are in here.  Taking 

guidance from counsel it is proposed that we have two, I think they 45 
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would be called heritage experts, we’ve got an architectural historian 

and a historian and an urban designer. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 5 

MS MARTIN:   Sir, “Hands Off Hagley” is wondering – our submissions 

apply to chapters that are being deferred to Thursday so do we take any 

more part in this process today? 

 

SJH:   Well you will need to attend Thursday obviously to attend that but if you 10 

can and if you are able at this stage to indicate your witnesses that is 

fine, if you want to leave it until Thursday that’s fine as well.  I mean 

this is an indication at this stage and can be changed.  But if you want 

to leave it till Thursday by all means do so. 

 15 

MS MARTIN:   Yes, that’s what we’ll do. 

 

SJH:   Okay then, thank you, any other submitters intending to call evidence? 

 

MS ……….:  The Peterborough Village hope to call a planner, sir. 20 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  All right well if we go back to the expert conferencing, 

Ms Scott, transport’s obviously one. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, urban design, heritage, storm water and wastewater 25 

came up. 

 

SJH:   It’s only between you and the Crown though, I don’t think anyone else 

indicated. 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, so we might be able to do that informally, sir. 

 

SJH:   Yes I think that would be sensible. 

 

MS SCOTT:   What will be important is that some of these experts have been 35 

called on specific zones, not generally, so there will need to be some 

organisation in who is actually conferencing with who when they are 

experts. 

 

SJH:   All right. 40 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, so sir - - - 

 

SJH:   So you will liaise with the secretariat to achieve that? 

 45 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, we will do that. 
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SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   Anything else around the expert conferencing?  All right thank you.  So 

I think we’ve set the submitter evidence by 14 January. Rebuttal 

evidence 26 January. The standard order around cross examination, 

your leave applications need to be made.  The normal time – sorry I’ll 

just go back to the evidence.  The standard will apply that evidence will 10 

be pre-read and parties will be invited to give a 10 minute highlights’ 

package.  If it’s believed that a longer time is needed parties can apply 

for an extension. 

 

 Cross examination, the usual 10 minute limitation. Applications for 15 

leave by 12 noon on 28 January.  Anybody that thinks they need longer 

than 10 minutes to cross examine can make application to the Panel for 

a longer period.  That should be done at the same time as the filing of 

the leave application, ie 12 noon, 28 January. 

 20 

 Pre-circulation of evidence if serving by the website it’s required by 

3.00 pm on the due date. Just for those who have not been engaged 

previously although the secretariat will post evidence on the website 

when it is received, it is not the onus of the secretariat to serve, it is on 

the various submitters. 25 

 

 Inevitably from time to time there is a need for the filing of late 

documents. If that is the case you must apply for leave to file late 

evidence and give reasons as to why it is late. 

 30 

  [10.35 am] 

 

 Expert evidence that’s been given earlier and I’m sure again we will 

come across a number of those. They don’t need to repeat earlier 

evidence, they can simply cross-reference the evidence they’ve given in 35 

earlier chapters.   

 

 Again with legal submissions we expect brief legal submissions, five to 

10 minutes at the maximum but that parties will be at liberty to file 

after the close of the hearings much lengthier closing legal 40 

submissions. This may also be done in writing or in person as the 

parties wish, and any legal submissions longer than three pages should 

have a contents page.  We will set the time for the filing of those when 

we come towards the end of the hearing, although I do note here that 

the opening legal if you wish to present an opening we need three 45 
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working days’ notification beforehand, at which time the written open 

legal submission should be filed.   

 

 Closing, if you wish to either appear and submit or whether you wish to 

simply present in writing, the secretariat needs to be notified three days 5 

before the close of hearings. Well I don’t think that’s very practical 

given the length of the hearings.  I think we’ll leave it as it is, by the 

close of hearing as directed by the chair.   

 

 The hearing dates pencilled in at the moment are for four and a half 10 

days from 9 to 12 February.  This is an indicative date, there is also 

additional time available following that if that proves not enough.  It 

may well do if the number of witnesses indicated particularly by the 

Crown, need to be called in at mediation and conferencing proves to be 

unsuccessful, but past experience shows that many issues have been 15 

resolved by that. 

 

 I have already introduced the friend of submitters.  Any parties wish to 

raise anything, counsel? 

 20 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Yes, sir, in terms of the indicative dates you’ve specified 

including the hearing date.  I do have a request on behalf of the Crown, 

sir, and that is whether the evidence exchange dates could be extended 

by two working days, sir.  The basis of that request is I am looking in 

particular at the submitter evidence exchange date being 14 January, I 25 

am conscious that that is very shortly after the Christmas period, I think 

having the additional two working days would just enable - - - 

 

SJH:   Well I think we are starting sitting by then so don’t look for sympathy 

up here, Mr Carranceja. 30 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, the observation is on the basis that if the hearing is 

tentatively starting on 9 February, sir, there is eight working days 

between the rebuttal filing date and the start of the hearing, that a two 

working day extension is provided, sir, that still provides - - -  35 

 

SJH:   We have hearings and we have reading.  The date remains as indicated. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Okay, sir. 

 40 

SJH:   That’s my direction, thank you. Are there any other matters counsel 

wish to raise?  Yes, Ms Scott. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, in my memorandum I have raised some scope issues in 

terms of some submissions. 45 
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SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS SCOTT:   If I could turn to those, please.  They start at paragraph 8.  In 

paragraph 9 we raise a submission by Papanui Road Limited to rezone 

1 Papanui Road which is the Carlton to City Centre Business.  This site 5 

was notified in stage 2 and there was no submission on that site in 

stage 2 so the hearing has already been for that one.  I am not aware of 

that submitter raising this issue with the Panel during the course of that 

hearing. 

 10 

SJH:   Papanui Road Limited are not here today. 

 

MS SCOTT:  No they are not but I haven’t been in contacted with their 

counsel, it is Russell McVeigh in Wellington and I will undertake to 

talk with Mr Hopkins-Gardner about this submission.  There probably 15 

does need to be a bit of a discussion about it because I have read the 

submission, it is not so much about the zoning, there’s an overlay 

which creates an entertainment precedent and they are wanting to be 

included in the entertainment precinct. 

 20 

  [10.40 am] 

 

SJH:   Well you will have to pass the message on. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   I will - - - 25 

 

SJH:   He needs to have his application supporting legal submissions to be 

served on submitters and he needs to do that within five working days. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, thank you. 30 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.  At paragraph 10 those two submitters are here 

today. 

 

SJH:   Well I will hand over to the first one to Judge Hassan. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Who is here for Hagley?  Miss Martin, have you had a 

chance to read the Council’s memorandum, Ms Martin? 

 

MS MARTIN:  Yes, sir, “Hands off Hagley” has read the Council 40 

memorandum and we have filed an application for procedural leave. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Scott, have you seen that? 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, I have not, sir. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, so I think if we mark a timetable direction for a 

Council response to that before directions are issued.  This is to an 

application for leave made by “Hands Off Hagley”, so Ms Scott if you 

– you have not seen it but could you get a response to the Panel to that 

within a couple of days? 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, we can, sir, and just for clarity if those submissions will be 

heard by the Panel they should be considered in the General Rules’ 

Hearing, not the central city one. That was the correction I made in 

paragraph 11 earlier. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And on that matter, Ms Martin, does “Hands off Hagley” 

have any position on whether it should be heard in the general rules 

section rather than in the central one? 

 15 

MS MARTIN:   Yes, we agree. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, okay.  Well it will just be for Miss Scott to 

respond to your application for leave and on that basis directions will 

issue. 20 

 

MS MARTIN:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.   

 25 

SJH:   Right, and Christ College, Mr Clease. 

 

MR CLEASE:   Yes, thank you, sir.  So we sorted in Stage 2 on the building 

set back from downstream waterways and as part of that Stage 2 

notification, downstream waterways could be defined as anything south 30 

or downstream from Mona Vale.   

 

 Then in the Stage 3 there was a separate rule came in just for the bit of 

waterway that goes through the central city which we omitted to submit 

on so my understanding is that we are still within scope given our 35 

Stage 2 submission note City Council’s suggesting that the downstream 

waterway rules be heard as part of the general city rules chapter 

because that is ultimately where they lined up and - - -  

 

SJH:  Well you can actually file a submission on? 40 

 

MR CLEASE:   No. 

 

SJH:   Well you need to make an application then, won’t you? 

 45 

MR CLEASE:   Okay. 
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SJH:   All right. And that can be done in two days, thank you.  Yes, Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir, paragraph 12, the two submissions listed there, 

they request classification of certain streets that have already been 5 

decided on by the Hearings’ Panel and I, therefore, raise those two 

submissions to your attention. 

 

SJH:   Well I think there are a number of these that are coming up later that 

deal in other pre-hearings as people who have made submissions on 10 

things that have already been heard and in some cases decided.  I think 

we need to give them the opportunity, so the Courtenay Street 

Residents Association and St Alban Residents Association have five 

working days to file a memorandum setting out why they say they are 

within scope for this central city hearing and the Council will have 15 

three working days thereafter to respond that will need to be served on 

those two parties by the secretariat, please. 

 

MS SCOTT:  Thank you, sir, and then finally paragraph 13, this relates to 

submission points by the Crown and this is – you would have noted 20 

that the Crown has listed a heritage expert for the cemeteries and it is 

the Council’s position that the submission points need to be considered 

in the Central City Hearing but that listing is of relevance and will 

come up again in the natural and cultural heritage proposal and that is 

why we have foreshadowed those submissions points for you. 25 

 

SJH:  All right, but at the moment it is going to have be heard in both basically. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 30 

SJH:   Which is its natural home?  And please do not say both. 

 

  [10.45 am] 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, chapter 13 is, sir, and it is the one that – I do not know if it 35 

does come first. 

 

SJH:   Well should we just direct that that be heard with chapter 13? 

 

MS SCOTT:   The Council’s fine with that, sir, I am not sure if the Crown - - - 40 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Sir, the Crown is content to have this heard as part of 

this chapter, sir.  There may be more to say about it when the listing 

itself is considered in chapter 9, sir, but in terms of the provisions that 

are to be considered by the Panel it does wish to have it heard in this 45 

proposal, sir. 
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SJH:   All right, well it can stay where it is but it seems to me like probably 

going to have to hear more evidence again when we get to chapter 13. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Sir, should that be the case we will, as per usual, just 5 

cross-refer back evidence already submitted.   

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 10 

 

SJH:   Anything else, any Council planners or submitters wish to raise?  All 

right, I repeat, Mr Ball is here for those submitters who do not have 

legal counsel and is available when we retire to assist you with any 

matters about the form of the document.  I stress he is not here to give 15 

you advice on legal matters, that is not his role, but he is to assist you 

with the process, the form of the documents, how you file them, 

matters like that so do take advantage of the fact that he is here and 

available.  Sorry, Ms Scott? 

 20 

MS SCOTT:  Sorry, sir, I just have one more submission point to raise with 

you and I raise it because this is the first stage 3 pre-hearing meeting.  

The Regional Council has made a submission seeking that a section be 

inserted into both chapter 1, introduction, there is no chapter 1 notified 

in Stage 3, and into all chapters of the Replacement District Plan to 25 

explain the plan’s internal hierarchy and explanation of which 

provisions take precedence.  That submission point does not sit clearly 

with any of the hearings to come and a proposal for all topics in 

chapters have not be notified in stage 3. 

 30 

SJH:   What was the submission on? 

 

MS SCOTT:   That was the submission point so it has been allocated to every 

chapter because it seeks additional text into every chapter of the plan. 

 35 

SJH:   Ms Wyss, isn’t this something, I mean we have got this wrap up at the 

end, is this something that we need to visit then? 

 

MS WYSS:   Yes, it could be, sir, so this was a submitter - - - 

 40 

SJH:   But you will ensure that we do not lose sight of it, I am sure, but - - - 

 

MS WYSS:   Yes, sir, it is a submission point that ECan does not wish to be 

heard on. 

 45 
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SJH:   I can see the sense of the hierarchy being made clear but not in every 

chapter because it is only those matters in Strategic Directions you are 

talking about, isn’t it? 

 

MS WYSS:   Yes, sir, it was a submitter point made. 5 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Anything else, Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, that is all, thank you, sir. 

 10 

MS DAWSON:  I just have one query. Going back right to the beginning, 

Ms Scott, when you were talking about dividing the chapters up.  Can 

we take it from that but by the time the central city chapter has been 

divided into its parent chapters, there will actually be no central city 

chapter left, is that the intention? 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   My understanding is that there are some general objectives and 

policies for the central city that will remain and they are not topic 

specific so they will not be allocated out into, for example, residential, 

commercial, open space et cetera but other than that all of the topics 20 

specific objectives policies, rules, et cetera, go out into the parent 

chapter. 

 

MS DAWSON:   But there will be some residual that is overarching and will 

stay in our chapter albeit they will be significantly reduced. 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, that is my understanding. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, and so as the Chairman said, having a list of how that is 

all going to happen would be very helpful, thank you. 30 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   I think what we asked in terms of the draft order to save everybody time 

and to save you catching up, it should cover all of these pre-hearings so 35 

we have got one document that sets it out clearly in one place, where 

everything goes, and whether it is an actual transfer or part of the 

hearing of a chapter into another chapter or whether it is simply a 

transfer to be heard with, they are clearly delineated.   

 40 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and the memorandum that we filed - - - 

 

SJH:   I know the memorandum around that.  It is still not without a level of 

confusion and what we require is a draft order that we can incorporate 

into all of the reports of the pre-hearings and if that can be done in one 45 

document, and the sooner the better, it will assist everybody not just us. 
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MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, so a better version of that memorandum is what you are 

after. 

 

SJH:   And all of them together, all the bits and all the memoranda in one 5 

document. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay. 

 

SJH:   Just for this purpose, not all the other bits in the memorandum, okay? 10 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. All right, thank you, we will adjourn until the next pre-

hearing, which I think is 11.30 am. Thank you. 15 

 

ADJOURNED [10.50 am] 


